
 
                                                                                                   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
                                                                                                     OPEN SESSION 
                                 Tuesday, June 17, 2025 
                                                            5:30 pm – La Verendrye General Hospital / Webex 

 

 

                                                                                                                      A G E N D A 

Item Description Page 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 pm – Indigenous Acknowledgment & Reading of the Mission Statement  

1.1     Quorum 

1.2     Conflict of Interest and Duty 

 

2. Consent Agenda 
2.1     Board Minutes – May 29, 2025 *  
2.2     Board Chair & Senior Leadership General Report – D. Clifford, H. Gauthier, D. Harris,  
           C. Larson, J. Ogden, Dr. L. Keffer * 
2.3     Governance Committee Report – B. Norton      
2.4     Audit & Resources Committee Report – B. Norton      
2.5     Quality Safety Risk Committee Report – M. Kitzul * 
2.6     Auxiliary Reports * 

 
 

3. Motion to Approve the Agenda  

4. Presentation – Draft Financial Statements – MNP Auditor – J. Savage *  

5. Patient / Resident Safety Moment  
 

 

6. Business Arising - None 
 

 

7. New Business - None 
 

 
 

8. Opportunity for Public Participation  

9. Move to In-Camera  

10. Other Motions/Business   
 

11. Date and Location of Next Meeting: September 2025 (date to be determined)  

12. Termination   

 

   * denotes attached in board package / **denotes circulated under separate cover / *** denotes previously distributed 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 1 of 53

Pg 4

Pg 7

Pg 8
Pg 10

Pg 11



 

  

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

ANTICIPATED MOTIONS – OPEN SESSION 
 

Tuesday, June 17, 2025 
 

  
3. Motion to Approve the Agenda THAT the RHC Board of Directors approve the Agenda 

as circulated/amended 

4. Motion to Approve the Draft Financial 
Statements 
 

THAT the RHC Board of Directors approves the 2024-
2025 audited financial statements, as reviewed and 
recommended by the Audit & Resources Committee 
 

9. Move to In-Camera THAT the RHC Board of Directors move to in camera 
session at (time) 

10. Other Motions/Business  
 

12. Termination THAT the RHC Board of Directors meeting be  
terminated at (time) 

 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 2 of 53



 

Indigenous Acknowledgment: 

 

Riverside acknowledges that the place we are meeting today is on the traditional lands of the 

Anishinaabeg people, within the lands of Treaty 3 Territory, as well as the home to many 

Métis.  

 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 3 of 53



Minutes of the Open Board Meeting – May 29, 2025 Page 1 

 

  RIVERSIDE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES INC. 
 MINUTES 
 OPEN SESSION 
      
Date of Meeting:   May 29, 2025                                     Time of Meeting:  5:30 pm 
 

Location of Meeting:    Webex / LVGH Board Room 
 

PRESENT: H. Gauthier  M. Kitzul  Dr. L. Keffer  D. Clifford   
K. Lampi  E. Bodnar   Dr. K. Arnesen*  *via Webex 
  

STAFF:  B.Booth, D. Harris, J. Ogden* 
 
REGRETS: A. Beazley, B. Norton, C. Larson 
 
GUESTS: K. Byrick*, D. McLeod, M. Murray, D. McDonald, D. Pierroz, S. DeGagne-Begin 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

D. Clifford called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  B. Booth recorded the minutes of this meeting. E. 
Bodnar read the Indigenous Acknowledgment and the Mission Statement. D. Clifford welcomed everyone 
and reminded all of the virtual meeting etiquette. Round table introductions took place.  

 
1.1 Quorum 
 

 D. Clifford shared there were 2 regrets. Quorum was present.  
 
1.2 Conflict of Interest 
 

No conflict of interest or duty was declared.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

The Chair asked if there were any items to be removed from the consent agenda to be discussed 
individually. There were no items removed.  

 
3. MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

4. Public Presentation – Board Membership – Melanie Murray 
 

D. Clifford welcomed Melanie Murray to the meeting who provided a presentation on Board membership 
on behalf of her group the Rainy River Concerned Citizens for Good Healthcare. The following was 
highlighted:  
 

• Melanie noted in Ontario, the governing body for a public hospital is typically a Board of 
Directors.  

• Melanie stated the Board’s key roles and responsibilities.   

• She shared that Riverside’s corporate community consists of Fort Frances, Emo and Rainy River 
and voiced concerns regarding not having Emo and Rainy River representation on the Board of 
Directors. Melanie also noted the Board should also consider a First Nation Community member 
on the Board.  

It was, 
 

MOVED BY:  M. Kitzul                                        SECONDED BY:   K. Lampi 
 
THAT the Board approves the Agenda as circulated.  

   CARRIED. 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 4 of 53

Item 2.1



Minutes of the Open Board Meeting – May 29, 2025 Page 2 

 

• Melanie noted that Riverside’s Board consists of global members rather than community 
representatives and questioned how effectively the Board of Directors could understand the 
needs and issues of the communities.  

• Melanie reported the challenges faced by the Rainy River facility in recent years might have been 
mitigated with more immediate and clear communication. She stated the absence of a Rainy 
River representative on the Board contributed to prolonging and intensifying the issues.  

• Melanie discussed the importance of effective communication stating this is essential for matters 
related to staffing, equipment and safety needs. She questioned how RHC’s Vision, Mission and 
Values are addressed when the communities are not represented on the Board. She read RHC’s 
Vision, Mission and Values.  

• Melanie shared a Board member once asked if she would apply for a position on the Board of 
Directors and questioned why this process isn’t in place currently noting this would allow all 
communities to be approached. She discussed being in a conflict of interest noting she didn’t 
agree that she was in a position of conflict however noted she felt that some current Board 
members have more of a conflict as they have family members that work for the facility.  

• Melanie noted including all communities on the Board could enhance cooperation in fundraising 
campaigns.  

• Melanie stated the Board currently has 6 members and shared according to a 2009 survey; a 
typical non-profit Hospital Board has between 14-17 members.   

• Melanie stated her group is present this evening to request proper Board representation on the 
Board of Directors.  

• Discussion took place. Diane Clifford explained the Board recruitment process noting a skills-
based matrix is used. Diane confirmed the Board does have Indigenous and Emo representation 
on the Board of Directors. Melanie questioned how these members were approached for the 
Board. Diane Clifford explained the Board puts advertisements in the newspaper, website, and 
on RHC’s social media platforms welcoming applications for the Board of Directors.  

• Melanie requested that the Board consider having proper representation on the Board and asked 
that the Board consider what was noted. She asked that the Board provide a response to her and 
the Rainy River Concerned Citizens for Good Healthcare group.  

 
D. Clifford thanked M. Murrary for her presentation and confirmed the Board would take their comments 
into consideration.  
 
Melanie Murray and Donna McDonald exited the meeting immediately after the presentation.  
 

5. Patient / Resident Safety Moment 
  

D. Harris shared a patient story regarding Compassion and Collaboration at Riverside’s Chemo 
Department: 

 
At Riverside, every patient’s journey is met with compassion, dignity, and a deep respect for their 
wishes—especially in life’s most vulnerable moments. The following was shared from a patient’s 
perspective. 
 
Recently, I was undergoing palliative treatment and visited our Chemo Department, determined to remain 
at home rather than be admitted to hospital. My heartfelt wish was simple yet profound: is to spend my 
remaining days in the comfort of my own home, surrounded by familiar surroundings and my loved ones. 
Understanding the importance of this request, the chemo nurses and utilization coordinator at Riverside 
sprang into action. They worked quickly and collaboratively, coordinating with community support 
services and palliative care resources to ensure I had everything I needed to safely and comfortably 
return home the same day. From arranging essential home care to ensuring medication and support were 
in place, their swift, seamless effort ensured my wish could be honored. 
The result? I was able to leave the Chemo Department and return home, empowered with a sense of 
control during a time when so much feels uncertain. I may not be able to stay in the comfort of my own 
home until the very end, but for the time being, feeling all was exhausted lightened stress on me and my 
significant other. The Doctor even wrote direct admission orders if I need to come be admitted for end-of-
life care allowing me to avoid a visit to the often-busy Emergency Department and get directly admitted 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 5 of 53



Minutes of the Open Board Meeting – May 29, 2025 Page 3 

 

into either of the beautiful hospice spaces they have. 
My story of my recent visit is a powerful reminder that compassion isn’t just about care—it’s about 
listening, respecting choices, and doing everything possible to uphold a patient’s dignity. Thank you to the 
Riverside team and our community partners for making this meaningful transition possible. Your 
dedication and humanity are truly inspiring. 
 

D. Clifford thanked D. Harris for sharing this story. D. Clifford acknowledged the staff for the work they do 
and providing compassionate care. She highlighted the beautiful palliative rooms available at all sites and 
reference the Palliative Care Committee and the good job they do.  

 

6. BUSINESS ARISING: 
 

 There was no business arising.  
 

7. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

 There was no new business.  
 

8. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

D. Clifford asked those from the public in attendance whether they had any questions regarding the Open 
Session agenda. There were no questions or discussion.  
 
D. Clifford thanked Dan Pierroz, Delaine McLeod and Shanda DeGagne-Begin for attending. They exited 
the meeting.   

 

9. MOVE TO IN-CAMERA:   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

10. OTHER MOTIONS/BUSINESS: 
 

Discussion took place regarding RHC’s governance policies noting these are based on the OHA Guide to 
Good Governance. K. Byrick, BLG Lawyer, confirmed RHC’s policies are up to date and current.  

 

11. DATE AND LOCATION OF NEXT MEETING: 
 

June 17, 2025 
 
12. TERMINATION:   
 

It was, 
 

MOVED BY:  M. Kitzul  
 

THAT the meeting be terminated at 8:17 pm. 
CARRIED. 

                  

                                                

                                                      
_______________________________          ___________________________________ 
Chair                                                                                            Secretary/Treasurer 

It was, 
   

MOVED BY:   K. Lampi                                                SECONDED BY:  E. Bodnar 
 

THAT the Board go in-camera at 5:52 pm. 
CARRIED. 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 6 of 53



 

  

Board Chair, Chief of Staff & Senior Leadership Report – June 2025 
Open Session 

 

Strategic Pillars & Directions 
 
Investing in Those Who Serve - Strategically Leveraging our Human Resources 

• Supervisor Leaders 

A meeting was held with the CEO, Nursing Supervisors and the Nursing Practice Lead as part of a focused rounding session.  

This provided opportunity to discuss successes and challenges/opportunities.   

 
One Riverside - Promoting a Consistent and Empowering Culture 

• Ontario Health Spring and Summer Direction 

The Ontario Health Spring & Summer Direction tool was received in May.  This document provides a very high-level 

Operational Direction for all sectors.  The document also focuses on ALC reduction, primary care, home care, community 

support services, mental health & addictions, OHTs, hospitals (surgery, imaging, admissions, transfers, emergency services, 

etc.), and long-term care homes.   A small subset of direction is provided for each part of the system to ensure alignment 

with provincial direction. 

 
Tomorrow’s Riverside Today - Investing Today to Support Tomorrow 

• Meditech Project Status 

Three separate sessions were conducted for Executive Sponsors from the Northwest Hospitals that are all participating in 

the Meditech Expanse project.  This change management focus is known as Bridge Northwest.  The purpose of the session 

was to discuss the current state of the project and identify opportunities to improve our change management efforts.  

• NW Regional CEO Working Group 

The NW Regional CEO Working Group was held on June 2, 2025.  The agenda included regional planning for lab, services 
council, EHR renewal, digital, specialized services, OHT updates, and the standing committees.   Regional standing 
committees include – digital, lab, pharmacy, HHR, Surgical Services, System Recovery & Transformation, CNE Council, and 
COS Council. 

 
Striving To Excel in Equity, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) 

• Substance Use Pathway 

On May 26, 2025, a subject expert from the UK provided a presentation to clinical leadership on managing substance use 

outside of the hospital environment.  This is intended to better inform our team as to the continuum of care for substance 

use treatment. 

• GHAC Meeting 
A meeting with the Interim GHAC CEO scheduled for June 17, 2025, has been deferred to the following week.  In addition 
to establishing a much-needed MOU for the ICCs other operational matters will be tabled as part of this collaborative 
effort. 

• OH CNE/CME Tour 
Dr. Chris Simpson, Acute and Hospital-Based Care Executive Vice President, Chief Medical Executive and Dr. Judy Linton, 
Acute and Hospital-Based Care Executive Vice President, Chief Nursing Executive for Ontario Health will be visiting LVGH 
on June 18, 2025, to meet with the senior team and discuss system challenges and opportunities. 
 

 
Thank you to the Riverside Team for their submissions, they are invaluable in the preparation of this report.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Diane Clifford, Board Chair 
Dr. Lucas Keffer, Chief of Staff 
Diana Harris, Chief Nursing Executive 
Carla Larson, Chief Financial, Information & Technology Officer 
Joanne Ogden, Quality Assurance & OHT Executive Lead 
Henry Gauthier, President & CEO 
RHC Directors, Managers & Supervisors 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 7 of 53

Item 2.2



 

  

 
Quality, Safety, Risk Committee Report – June 2025 

 

  
2.5.1 Board Quality Metrics * 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 8 of 53

Item 2.5



 

INDICATOR SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG YTD Actual Target Variance Notes

1. Participation A 71% 86% 71% #DIV/0! 67% 83% 83% 83% 67% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 76% 75% 1%

2. Participation B 92% 75% 83% #DIV/0! 100% 100% 86% 75% 100% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 89% 75% 14%

3. Reflection A 43% #DIV/0! 86% #DIV/0! 100% #DIV/0! 83% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 77% 100% -23%

4. Reflection B #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 100% #DIV/0!

5. Decision Making 100% 100% 100% #DIV/0! 100% 100% 100% 100% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 100% 90% 10%

6. Education A 100% 100% 100% #DIV/0! 100% 100% 100% 100% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 117% 100% 17% min of 1 session/mtg

7. Education B 100% 100% 100% #DIV/0! 100% 100% 100% 100% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 100% 100% 0% min of 2 items/mtg

8. Composition 0% 0% 89% -89%

0/18 met (in green zone) - 

due to Board vacancies

9. Compliance 100% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 90% #DIV/0!

Board Orientation took place 

in September 2024

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - QUALITY METRICS - 2024-2025

Regional Sales chart plots the sales of up to eight regions from January through December. Enter Notes in cell N3 at right and sales data for each month in cells below.

INDICATORS:

1. Participation A - # of voting board members attending 

board meetings monthly.         

2. Participation B - # of voting board members attending 

committee meetings monthly.            

3. Reflection A - # of completed board meeting evaluation 

surveys bi-monthly.                 

4. Reflection B - # of members that complete the board self-

assessment questionnaire annually (June).  

5. Decision Making - # of board decisions made by detailed 

briefing notes/supporting documentation done monthly.                  

6. Education A - # of education sessions at board meetings 

monthly.     

7. Education B - # of board meeting agenda items related to 

integration, quality or strategy monthly.

8. Composition - # of categories in the skills based board 

matrix met annually (March).

9. Compliance - # of new directors that attend board 

orientation annually (Sept).

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 9 of 53



 

  

 
Auxiliary Report – June 2025 

 

  
Emo 
 
No Report.  
 

 
La Verendrye General Hospital 
 

• The AGM and luncheon will be held on June 9th at Knox United Church.  Five members will be 
acknowledged for long term membership:  Rhoda Dickson - 40 years, Ethel Lowey - 30 years, 
Wendy Angus, Rita Bagacki, Dolores Fraser each with 25 years. 

• 2024-25 pledge will be completed at AGM.  $35,000 had been presented at Spirit of Christmas 
and $42,679.92 will be presented at AGM.  This includes an additional $7,679.92 beyond original 
pledge of $70,000 which will cover increased costs. 

• Strawberry Social being held on Thursday, June 12th.  Location for making desserts for delivery 
had to change because of increased staff in old ambulance garage.  David Black was most helpful 
in finding an alternate location - common room at Front Street Manor.  Challenge finding 
freezers also because of closing of Leons but we are hopeful that deliveries can be handled using 
freezers from Green's.  Initial order numbers look positive.  The 'social' will once again be held at 
FF Senior Centre from 1:30-3:30. Will include a bake sale and penny table. 

• Planning meeting for a new fall event to be held July 29th.  Next regular Executive meeting 
scheduled for September. 

 

 
Rainycrest 
 
No Report. 
 

 
Rainy River 
 
The Rainy River Health Centre Auxiliary met on June 4th with the following highlights: 

• A cake was delivered to the Rainy River Health Centre to acknowledge the hospital staff during nurse’s 
week. 

• Our auxiliary continues to give welcome gifts to all new residents entering long term care. 

• A donation was received by the auxiliary in memory of Winnie Berrard. 

• After analyzing the applications for our 2025 Rainy River High School Bursary, it was decided to award 
the bursary to Teira Wolanicki Forster. 

• Our auxiliary purchased flowers for the long-term care patients to plant at the front of the hospital. 

• Our treasurer is resigning her position, so we are in need of someone to take this position.  Discussion 
took place regarding recruitment of new members, with the membership considering moving our 
meeting time to evenings, if there is commitment from the community to join the auxiliary. 

 

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 10 of 53

Item 2.6



DRAFT
Riverside Health Care
Facilities, Inc.
Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 11 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care
Facilities, Inc.
Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Contents

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 2

Independent Auditor's Report 3

Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position 5
Summary Statement of Operations 6
Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Debt) 8
Statement of Cash Flows 9
Notes to Financial Statements 10

  Schedule   1 - Summary of Fund Type II's - Other Votes 25
  Schedule   2 - Summary of Fund Type III's - Other Funding Sources 26
  Schedule   3 - Family Violence Counselling Program 27
  Schedule   4 - Riverside Community Family Violence Service - PARR 28
  Schedule   5 - Non-Profit Suppotive Housing 29
  Schedule   6 - Mental Health (Case Management) 30
  Schedule   7 - Mental Health (Counselling) 31
  Schedule   8 - Addictions 32
  Schedule   9 - Rapdi Access Addiction Medicine (RAAM) Clinic 33
  Schedule 10 - Problem Gambling 34
  Schedule 11 - Crisis Response 35
  Schedule 12 - Supportive Housing 36
  Schedule 13 - ALC Back to Home 37
  Schedule 14 - Patient Navigator 38
  Schedule 15 - Rainycrest - Home for the Aged 39
  Schedule 16 - Community Support Services 40
  Schedule 17 - Community Paramedicine 41
  Schedule 18 - Assisted Living 42

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 12 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. are the responsibility
of management and have been approved by the Board Chair and CEO on behalf of the Organization.

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards. Financial statements are not precise since they include certain
amounts based on estimates and judgments.  When alternative accounting methods exist,
management has chosen those it deems most appropriate in the circumstances, in order to ensure
that the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. 

The Organization maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls of high
quality consistent with reasonable cost.  Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate and the Organization's assets are
appropriately accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The Board of Directors are responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the financial
statements.

The Directors review the Organization's financial statements and meet periodically with
management, as well as the external auditors, to discuss internal controls over the financial
reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to satisfy themselves that each
party is properly discharging their responsibilities, and to review the annual report, the financial
statements and the external auditor's report.

The financial statements have been audited by MNP LLP, independent external auditors appointed
by the Organization. The audit has been performed in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities,
the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Organization's financial statements.

Board Chair

CEO

2
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 13 of 53



DRAFT

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.: 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. (the "Organization"), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2025, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Organization as at March 31, 2025, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial statements, which indicates that, as of March 31, 2025, the
Organization's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by $545,006, representing a working capital deficit. As
stated in Note 2, these conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Organizations ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on June 18, 2024.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial reporting process.

MNP LLP
607 Portage Avenue, Fort Frances ON, P9A 0A7 T: 807.274.9848   F: 807.274.5142

MNP.ca

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 14 of 53



DRAFT

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Organization to cease to continue
as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Fort Frances, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

June 17, 2025 Licensed Public Accountants

607 Portage Avenue, Fort Frances, Ontario, P9A 0A7  
T: 807.274.9848   F: 807.274.5142   MNP.ca

Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 15 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2025 2024

Assets

Current
Cash and bank (Note 4) $ 2,698,418 $ 557,138
Portfolio investments 93,346 31,562
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 8,828,265 13,304,326
Inventories (Note 6) 453,422 472,679
Prepaid expenses 884,601 833,362

12,958,052 15,199,067

Capital assets (Note 7) 35,055,508 31,327,865
Construction in progress 711,662 1,848,435

$48,725,222 $ 48,375,367

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 9) 6,420,622 8,025,259
Due to LHIN/MOHLTC/other agencies 7,082,436 7,532,709

13,503,058 15,557,968

Post-employment benefits and
  compensated absences (Note 10) 6,309,300 6,319,500
Deferred revenue (Note 11) 21,477,551 19,958,795
Long-term debt (Note 12) 1,118,158 1,217,357
Asset retirement obligations (Note 13) 6,713,485 6,447,215

49,121,552 49,500,835

Net assets (debt)
Unrestricted (8,078,250) (9,604,636)
Investment in capital assets (Note 14) 7,618,884 8,417,809
Board designated 63,036 61,359

(396,330) (1,125,468)

$48,725,222 $ 48,375,367

Contingencies (Note 16)

On behalf of the Board:

Director

Director

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 16 of 53



DRAFT

 Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Summary Statement of Operations

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Operating

Revenue  
LHIN - base allocation $ 32,406,128 $ 29,611,612
LHIN/MOHLTC - one-time payments 12,132,371 12,222,125
LHIN/MOHLTC - quality based procedures 2,389,726 1,799,109
LHIN/MOHLTC - other revenue 907,331 752,439

47,835,556 44,385,285

Patient revenue, differential and co-payment revenue 2,950,187 2,989,715
Recoveries and miscellaneous revenue 4,695,306 5,398,953
Amortization of deferred contributions related to equipment 693,534 532,945
Cancer care 4,795 7,686

Total revenue 56,179,378 53,314,584

Expenses
Salaries and wages 27,794,505 26,475,224
Benefits contributions from employers 5,979,303 6,204,792
Post-employment benefits and compensated absences 33,900 11,300
Medical staff remuneration 3,112,007 2,987,134
Nurse practitioners remuneration 719,712 790,998
Supplies and other expenses 8,565,727 6,948,108
Amortization of software licenses and fees 102,033 21,158
Medical and surgical supplies 1,659,549 1,734,822
Drugs and medical gases 2,707,467 2,801,745
Bad debts 252,392 109,683
Amortization of major equipment 1,132,718 961,599
Rent/lease of equipment 245,545 194,355
Rainy River clinic 1,287,929 -

Total expenses 53,592,787 49,240,918

Surplus (deficit) from operations 2,586,591 4,073,666

Other votes (Schedule 1) (Note 15)
Revenue 23,626,003 22,645,308
Expenses 24,942,047 25,452,525

Surplus (deficit) from other votes (1,316,044) (2,807,217)

Other funding sources (Schedule 2) (Note 15)
Revenue 818,974 712,966
Expenses 631,542 742,209

Surplus from other funding sources 187,432 (29,243)

Surplus (deficit) from operations, other votes and other 
  funding sources $ 1,457,979 $ 1,237,206

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 17 of 53



DRAFT

 Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Summary Statement of Operations

(Continued)

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Surplus, carried forward $ 1,457,979 $ 1,237,206

Capital revenue
Amortization of deferred contributions

related to non-marketed buildings and service equipment 958,583 818,697

2,416,562 2,055,903
Capital expenses

Amortization of non-marketed buildings and service equipment (1,422,831) (1,861,440)
Accretion expense on asset retirement obligations (266,270) (250,420)

Surplus (deficit) for the year $ 727,461 $ (55,957)

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.

7
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 18 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
  Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Debt)

Invested in
Capital Board Total Total

For the year ended March 31 Unrestricted Assets Designated 2025 2024

Balance, beginning of year
  (Note 2) $ (9,604,636)$ 8,417,809 $ 61,359 $ (1,125,468)$ (1,071,699)

Surplus (deficit) for the year 727,461 - - 727,461 (55,957)

Net change in investment in 
  capital assets (Note 14) 798,925 (798,925) - - -

Net transfer to 
  board designated - - 1,677 1,677 2,189

Balance, end of year $ (8,078,250)$ 7,618,884 $ 63,036 $ (396,330)$ (1,125,467)

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements. 8
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 19 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
  Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Surplus (deficit) for the year $ 727,461 $ (55,957)
Adjustments to net assets 1,677 2,189
Items not involving cash

Amortization of capital assets 2,701,245 3,022,259
Amortization of deferred contribution related to 

capital assets (1,652,118) (1,351,641)
Net increase in post-employment benefits and

compensated absences (10,200) (70,000)
Accretion expense on asset retirement obligations 266,270 250,420

2,034,335 1,797,270

Change in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable 4,476,061 (669,563)
Inventories 19,257 25,248
Prepaid expenses (51,240) (34,879)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,604,636) (1,214,819)
Due to LHIN/MOHLTC (450,273) 675,422
Deferred revenue (1,703,968) 542,421

685,201 (676,170)

2,719,536 1,121,100

Cash flow from capital activities
Purchase of capital assets (5,292,115) (3,566,728)

Cash flow from investing activities
Increase in portfolio investments (61,784) (1,170)

Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in deferred contributions 4,874,842 3,807,591
Repayment of long-term debt (99,199) (208,321)

4,775,643 3,599,270

Increase in cash during the year 2,141,280 1,152,472

Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year 557,138 (595,334)

Cash and bank, end of year $ 2,698,418 $ 557,138

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements. 9
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 20 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of 
  Organization Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. (the “Organization”) was

incorporated under the Ontario Hospitals Act on May 13, 1975.  The
Organization is principally involved in providing health care services
to the central and western regions of the Rainy River District.  The
Organization is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and
accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain
requirements of the Income Tax Act are met.

Management's 
  Responsibility The financial statements of Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. are

representations of management.  The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards for government not-for-profit organizations, including the
4200 series of standards, as issued by the Public Sector Accounting
Board ("PSAB for Government NPO's"). 

Cash and Cash 
  Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, bank balances

and investments in money market instruments with maturities of
three months or less.

Inventory Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in first-out basis. Inventory consists
of medical and general supplies that are used in the Organization's
operations and not for resale purposes.

Capital Assets Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization.  Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value
at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to expense. Betterments which extend the estimated useful
life of an asset are capitalized. When capital assets no longer
contribute to the Organization's ability to provide services or the
value of future economic benefits associated with the capital asset
is less than its net book value, the carrying value of the capital asset
is reduced to reflect the decline in the asset's value. 

Construction in progress is not amortized until construction is
substantially complete and the assets are ready for use.

Capital assets are amortized on a straight line basis using the
following estimated annual rates:

Land improvements 10 to 15 years
Buildings 20 to 40 years
Building service equipment 20 to 40 years
Major equipment   5 to 20 years
Computer software   3 to   5 years

10
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 21 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Retirement and
  Post-employment
  Benefits and 
  Compensated
  Absences The Organization provides defined retirement and post-employment

benefits and compensated absences to certain employee groups.
These benefits include pension, health and dental, and vesting sick
leave. The Organization has adopted the following policies with
respect to accounting for these employee benefits:

(i) The costs of post-employment future benefits are actuarially
determined using management's best estimate of health
care costs, disability recovery rates and discount rates.
Adjustments to these costs arising from changes in estimates
and experienced gains and losses are amortized to income
over the estimated average remaining service life of the
employee groups on a straight line basis. Plan amendments,
including past service costs, are recognized as an expense in
the period of the plan amendment.

(ii) The Organization is an employer member of the Healthcare
of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP), which is a multi-employer,
defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Trustees,
representing plan members and employers, is responsible for
overseeing the management of the pension plan, including
investment of the assets and administration of the benefits.
The costs to the Organization of the multi-employer defined
benefit pension are the employer's contributions due to the
plan in the period.

(iii) The cost of vesting sick leave benefits are actuarially
determined using management's best estimate of salary
escalation, employees' use of entitlement and discount
rates. Adjustments to these costs arising from changes in
actuarial assumption and/or experience are recognized over
the estimated average remaining service life of the
employees.

(iv) The discount rate used in the determination of the above-
mentioned liabilities is equal to the Organization's internal
rate of borrowing.

11
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 22 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments The Organization classifies its financial instruments as either fair
value or amortized cost. The Organization's accounting policy for
each category is as follows:

Fair Value

This category includes cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits, bank indebtedness and derivatives.

They are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses until they are realized, when they
are transferred to the Statement of Operations. Changes in fair
value on restricted assets are recognized as a liability until the
criterion attached to the restrictions has been met.

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the fair value
category are expensed as incurred.

Where a decline in fair value is determined to be other than
temporary, the amount of the loss is removed from accumulated
remeasurement gains and losses and recognized in the Summary
Statement of Operations. On sale, the amount held in accumulated
remeasurement gains and losses associated with that instrument is
removed from net assets and recognized in the Summary Statement
of Operations. 

The Organization does not have any remeasurement gains or losses.
As a result, the financial statements do not include a Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses.

Amortized Cost

This category includes accounts receivable, accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, long-term debt and amounts due to
LHIN/MOHLTC/other agencies. They are initially recognized at cost
and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method, less any impairment losses on financial assets.

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized
cost category are added to the carrying value of the instrument.

Writedowns on financial assets in the amortized cost category are
recognized when the amount of a loss is known with sufficient
precision, and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial
assets are then written down to net recoverable value with the
writedown being recognized in the Summary Statement of
Operations.

12
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 23 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Board Designated
  Net Assets Board designated net assets include donations and bequests as well

as certain fund surpluses designated for specific purposes by the
Board of Directors.

Revenue Recognition The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions, which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and Regulations thereto, the
Organization is funded primarily by the Province of Ontario in
accordance with budget arrangements established by the Ministry of
Health and Long-Term Care ("MOHLTC") and the North West Local
Health Integration Network ("LHIN").  Operating grants are recorded
as revenue in the period to which they relate.  Grants approved but
not received at the end of an accounting period are accrued.  Where
a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and
recognized in that subsequent period.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received
or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred.  Contributions
restricted for the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a
rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related
property, plant and equipment.

Amortization of non-marketed buildings and service equipment is
not funded by the LHIN and accordingly the amortization of non-
marketed buildings and service equipment has been reflected as an
undernoted item in the Summary Statement of Operations with the
corresponding realization of revenue for deferred contributions.

Revenue from patient services is recognized when the service is
provided.

Revenue from the Provincial Insurance Plan and marketed services is
recognized when the goods are sold or the service is provided.

Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when
earned.

13
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 24 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
 Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Contributed Services Volunteers contribute numerous hours to assist the Organization in
carrying out certain charitable aspects of its service delivery
activities. The fair value of these contributed services is not readily
determinable and, as such, is not reflected in these financial
statements.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards for government not-for-
profit organizations requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results
could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

Areas of key estimation include actuarial estimation of post-
employment benefits and compensated absences and the estimated
useful lives of capital assets.

Asset Retirement
  Obligations A liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized when

there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a
tangible capital asset; the past transaction or event giving rise to
the liability has occurred; it is expected that future economic
benefits will be given up; and a reasonable estimate of the amount
can be made.  The liability is recorded at an amount that is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to retire a tangible capital
asset at the financial statement date.  This liability is subsequently
reviewed at each financial reporting date and adjusted for the
passage of time and for any revisions to the timing, amount required
to settle the obligation or the discount rate.  Upon the initial
measurement of an asset retirement obligation, a corresponding
asset retirement cost is added to the carrying value of the related
tangible capital asset if it is still in productive use.  This cost is
amortized over the useful life of the tangible capital asset. If the
related tangible capital asset is unrecognized or no longer in
productive use, the asset retirement costs are expensed.

14
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 25 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

2. Amalgamation

On November 1, 2024, Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. and LaVerendrye Non-Profit
Supportive Housing Corporation amalgamated to form a single entity and continue
operations as Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. 

The amalgamation was accounted for using the continuity of interest method as the
combination occured between entities under common control. Under the continuity of
interest method, the current and comparative information presented in these financial
statements represent the combined information as if the two entities had always been one
entity. As a result of the amalgamation, opening retained earnings for each year and net
income for 2024 has been determined as follows:

2025 2024

Net assets, beginning of year, as previously stated:
  Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. $ (1,912,593) $ (1,885,134)
  LaVerendrye Non-Profit Supportive Housing Corporation 787,125 813,435

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated $ (1,125,468) $ (1,071,699)

Surplus (deficit) for the year ended March 31, 2024, as previously stated:
  Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. $ (29,648)
  LaVerendyre Non-Profit Supportive Housing Corporation (26,310)

Surplus (deficit) for the year ended March 31, 2024, as restated $ (55,958)

3. Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates
the realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.
Should the Organization be unable to continue as a going concern, it may be unable to
realize the carrying value of its assets and to meet its liabilities as they become due.

The Organization, which is primarily funded by the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term
Care and the North West Local Health Integration Network has been facing financial
difficulties for continuous years. The Organization realized income from operations, other
votes and other funding sources during the year ended March 31, 2025 of $1,457,979,
however that result included over $11,200,000 of one-time Provincial funding for
operational pressures and, as at March 31, 2025, the Organization's current liabilities
continued to exceed its current assets by $545,006, representing a working capital deficit. 

The Organization's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to
raise adequate cash flows to cover its current obligations on a timely basis and to attain
positive cash flows to cover its continuing operations. In addition, the Organization is
dependent upon continued support from the Province of Ontario for operational funding. 

These financial statements do not reflect any adjustments to the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that would be necessary should the Organization be unable to continue as a
going concern. 

15
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 26 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

4. Cash and Bank    

The Organization's bank accounts are held at one chartered bank. In the normal course of
operations, the Organization is exposed to credit risk from having bank account balances
over the amounts insured by the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

5. Accounts Receivable         
2025 2024

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care $ 4,416,977 $ 8,066,225
Insurers and patients 1,647,977 1,353,951
Other 2,763,311 3,884,150

$ 8,828,265 $ 13,304,326

6. Inventories         

2025 2024

Medical and surgical supplies $ 40,185 $ 40,363
Drugs 244,688 272,513
Pandemic 11,458 9,164
Other 157,091 150,639

$ 453,422 $ 472,679

7. Capital Assets          

2025 2024

Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value

Land $ 1,588,429 $ - $ 1,588,429 $ 1,588,429
Land improvements 3,622,685 3,341,066 281,619 272,576
Buildings and
  service equipment 68,560,320 41,965,968 26,594,352 23,993,166
Machinery and equipment 24,636,580 18,894,974 5,741,606 5,367,400
Computer software 1,983,173 1,133,671 849,502 106,294

$100,391,187 $65,335,679 $35,055,508 $ 31,327,865

16
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 27 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

8. Bank Indebtedness

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. is party to a short-term credit agreement with a
Canadian chartered bank pursuant to which the Organization could borrow up to $5,000,000
in the form of a demand operating loan.  The amount drawn under the credit agreement as
at March 31, 2025, was $267,997 (2024 - $1,149,906).

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities          

2025 2024

Trade accounts payable $ 1,448,838 $ 3,432,632
Accrued salaries and benefits 4,971,784 4,592,627

$ 6,420,622 $ 8,025,259

10. Post-employment Benefits and Compensated Absences

The Organization has an unfunded benefit plan providing retirement and post-employment
benefits (excluding pension) to most of its employees.  The Organization pays certain
medical and life insurance benefits under an unfunded defined benefit plan on behalf of its
retired employees. The eligibility for benefits is determined by the status and employment
group to which each individual employee belongs.

The Organization measures its accrued benefits obligation for accounting purposes as at
March 31st of each year.  The latest actuarial valuation was prepared effective March 31,
2023 and results from that valuation have been extrapolated to March 31, 2025.

2025

Post-employment Non-Vesting
Benefits Sick Leave Total

Accrued employee future
  benefits obligation $ 3,669,500 $ 27,800 $ 3,697,300

Unamortized actuarial gains (losses) 2,627,300 (15,300) 2,612,000

Total $ 6,296,800 $ 12,500 $ 6,309,300

2024

Post-employment Non-Vesting
Benefits Sick Leave Total

Accrued employee future
  benefits obligation $ 3,320,800 $ 26,500 $ 3,347,300

Unamortized actuarial gains (losses) 3,004,500 (32,300) 2,972,200

Total $ 6,325,300 $ (5,800) $ 6,319,500

17
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 28 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

10. Post-employment Benefits and Compensated Absences (continued)

2025

Post-employment Non-Vesting
Benefits Sick Leave Total Expenses

Current year benefit cost $ 268,700 $ - $ 268,700

Interest on accrued benefit
  obligation 167,800 1,300 169,100

Amortized actuarial losses (gains) (279,700) 17,200 (262,500)

Total expenses $ 156,800 $ 18,500 $ 175,300

Benefit payments $ 185,300 $ 200 $ 185,500

Current year actuarial gains (losses) $ (97,500) $ (200) $ (97,700)

2024

Post-employment Non-Vesting
Benefits Sick Leave  Total Expenses

Current year benefit cost $ 256,400 $ - $ 256,400

Interest on accrued benefit
  obligation 156,400 2,200 158,600

Amortized actuarial losses (gains) (269,400) 17,200 (252,200)

Total expenses $ 143,400 $ 19,400 $ 162,800

Benefit payments $ 188,900 $ 43,900 $ 232,800

Current year actuarial gains (losses) $ - $ - $ -

18
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 29 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

10. Post-employment Benefits and Compensated Absences (continued)

Above amounts exclude pension contributions to the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan
("HOOPP"), a multi-employer plan, described below:

Retirement Benefits

HOOPP Pension Plan

Substantially all of the full-time employees and some of the part-time employees of the
Organization are members of the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan. The latest valuation
for HOOPP indicated the plan is 111% funded and disclosed net assets available for benefits
of $123.0 billion with an accrued pension obligation of $112.6 billion and a surplus of $10.4
billion. The plan is a multi-employer plan and therefore the Organization's contributions are
accounted for as if the plan were a defined contribution plan with the Organization's
contributions being expensed in the period they come due. Due to the nature of HOOPP, the
Organization does not recognize any share of the HOOPP surplus or deficit. Contributions to
the plan during the year by the Organization on behalf of its employees amounted to
$2,231,394 (2024 – $2,528,447) and are included in the Summary Statement of Operations. 

Post-employment Benefits

The Organization extends post-employment life insurance, health and dental benefits to
certain employee groups subsequent to their retirement. The Organization recognizes these
benefits as they are earned during the employees' tenure of service. The related benefit
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation study prepared effective March 31, 2023
and extrapolation of the results of that valuation to March 2025.

The major actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows:

a) Discount rate
The present value as at March 31, 2025, of the future benefits was determined using a 
discount rate of 4.50% (2024 - 4.80%).

b) Extended health care costs
Extended health care costs were assumed to increase at a rate of 6.00% in the first year
following the valuation year and decrease by annual decrements of 0.25% to an ultimate
rate of 4.00%.

c) Dental costs
Dental costs were assumed to increase at 4.00% per annum.

19
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 30 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

10. Post-employment Benefits and Compensated Absences (continued)

Compensated Absences

Non-Vesting Sick Leave

The Organization compensates certain employee groups for any unused sick days they have
accumulated upon retirement or death. The employees accrued sick days are paid out at the
salary rate in effect at retirement or death. No benefit is payable on termination. The
related benefit liability was determined by an actuarial valuation study.

The assumptions used in the valuation of non-vesting sick leave are the Organization's best
estimates of expected rates of:

2025 2024

Wage and salary escalation 1.50% 1.50%
Discount rate 4.50% 4.80%

11. Deferred Revenue     

2025 2024

Deferred physician recruitment funding $ 221,251 $ 156,071
Other deferred revenue 515,590 704,325
Accounting software implementation costs - 368,987
Hospital Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program 
  (ICIP) funding - 1,214,402
Non-Profit Housing - Building Replacement 411,317 408,651
Non-Profit Housing - Rent Stabalization 12,749 12,439

1,160,907 2,864,875
  
Deferred contributions related to capital assets 20,316,644 17,093,920

$21,477,551 $ 19,958,795

Deferred contributions related to capital assets are amortized at the same rate as the
corresponding assets are being amortized.

20
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 31 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

12. Long-term Debt

2025 2024  

TD bank property purchase loan, part of multiple draw
committed reducing term facility, repayable monthly at
$1,085 principal and interest, fixed interest rate of
1.61%. Unsecured with a maturity date of December 14,
2025. $ 229,537 $ 238,782

TD bank property purchase loan, part of multiple draw
committed reducing term facility, repayable monthly at
$1,482 principal and interest, fixed interest rate of
1.99%. Unsecured with a maturity date of May 14, 2026. 306,911 318,458

TD bank property purchase loan, part of multiple draw
committed reducing term facility, repayable monthly at
$1,530 principal and interest, fixed interest rate of
2.68%. Unsecured with a maturity date of December 3,
2026. 302,363 312,471

Mortgage payable, repayable at $10,602 monthly including
  interest at 2.70%, matured April 1, 2024. $ - $ 10,578

Mortgage payable, repayable at $6,026 monthly including
  interest at 4.52%, maturing June 1, 2029, secured by real 
  estate with a carrying value of $303,983 (March 31, 2024
   carrying value of $337,068). 279,347 337,068

1,118,158 1,217,357

Less current portion 92,590 30,258

$ 1,025,568 $ 1,187,099

Payments of principal required over the next five years, assuming refinancing on similar
terms, and thereafter, are as follows:

Principal
Repayments Interest Total

2026 $ 92,590 $ 28,879 $ 121,469
2027 96,053 25,780 121,833
2028 99,658 21,810 121,468
2029 103,413 18,055 121,468
2030 52,273 14,963 67,236
Thereafter 674,171 125,823 799,994

$ 1,118,158 $ 235,310 $ 1,353,468

The gross interest paid relating to the above long-term debt was $34,709 (2024 - $43,074).

21
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 32 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

13. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Organization's financial statements include asset retirement obligations for asbestos
abatement work to be performed at the LaVerendrye General Hospital facility and the
Rainycrest Home for the Aged facility. The related asset retirement costs are being
amortized on a straight line basis.   The liability has been estimated using a net present
value technique with a discount rate of 4.13% (2024 – 4.13%).  The estimated total
undiscounted future expenditures are $17,365,661 (2024 - $17,365,661), which are
estimated to be incurred over the next 24 years.  The liability is expected to be settled in
the March 31, 2049 fiscal year.   

The carrying amount of the liabilities are as follows:

Asset Retirement Obligations as at March 31, 2024 $ 6,447,215
Increase due to accretion expense 266,270

Asset retirement obligations as at March 31, 2025 $ 6,713,485

14. Investment in Capital Assets

(a) Investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2025 2024

Capital assets $ 35,055,508 $ 30,980,219
Construction in progress 711,662 1,848,435
Amounts financed by:
  Deferred contributions (Note 11) (20,316,644) (17,093,920)

Long-term debt (Note 12) (1,118,158) (869,711)
        Asset retirement obligations (Note 13) (6,713,485) (6,447,215)

$ 7,618,883 $ 8,417,808

22
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 33 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

13. Investment in Capital Assets (continued)

(b) Change in investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2025 2024

Purchase of capital assets $ 5,292,115 $ 3,566,728
Increase in capital assets from asset retirement 
  obligations - 133,358
Amounts funded by deferred contributions (4,874,842) (3,807,592)
Amortization of deferred contributions related to 
  capital assets 1,652,118 1,351,641
Amortization of capital assets (2,701,245) (3,022,259)
Decrease (increase) in amounts funded by long-term debt 99,199 208,321
Increase in amounts funded by asset retirement 
  obligations (266,270) (383,778)

$ (798,925) $ (1,953,581)

15. Other Votes and Other Funding Source Revenues 

Other votes and other funding source revenues have been recognized to the extent they
have been earned in the year.  Excess cash flows received at year end are included in due to
LHIN/MOHLTC/other agencies liabilities at year end. 

16. Contingencies

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. has been named as a defendant in legal claims which
arose in the ordinary course of business. The lawsuits are ongoing and as litigation is subject
to many uncertainties, it is premature to make any evaluation of the possible outcome or
possible settlement amount of the claims. Consequently, no provision for the claims have
been made in the financial statements. Management believes the Organization has sufficient
insurance to cover costs related to pending litigation.

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. participates in the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of
Canada (HIROC), a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of its hospital members.
Members of the pool pay annual premiums, which are actuarially determined. Members are
subject to assessment for losses, if any, experienced by the pool for the year in which they
were members. No assessments have been made to March 31, 2025, with respect to claims. 

17. Economic Dependence

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc. receives the majority of its funding from the Ministry of
Health and Long-Term Care and the North West Local Health Integration Network.

23
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 34 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2025

18. Financial Instrument Risk Management

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Organization if a debtor fails to make payments
of interest and principal when due. The Organization is exposed to this risk relating to its
accounts receivable.

Accounts receivable are primarily due from OHIP, the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care
and patients. Credit risk is mitigated by the financial solvency of the provincial government
and the highly diversified nature of the patient population.

The Organization measures its exposure to credit risk based on how long the amounts have
been outstanding. An impairment allowance is set up based on the Organization's historical
experience regarding collections.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of market factors. Market factors include three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and equity risk. The Organization is not exposed to significant
interest, currency or equity risk as it does not hold any interest bearing investments, does
not transact materially in foreign currency or hold equity financial instruments.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Organization will not be able to meet all cash outflow
obligations as they come due. The Organization mitigates this risk by monitoring cash
activities and expected outflows through extensive budgeting and maintaining minimal non-
cash assets.

Financial Instrument Classification

All financial instruments, with the exception of portfolio investments and bank
indebtedness, are recognized at amortized cost. 

Portfolio investments and bank indebtedness are recognized at fair value using Level 1 fair
value measurements. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities using the last bid price.

24
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 35 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 1 - Summary of Fund Type II's - Other Votes

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue  
Mental Health - Case Management (Schedule 6) $ 90,898 $ 90,904
Mental Health - Counselling (Schedule 7) 762,860 790,983
Addictions (Schedule 8) 212,170 212,457
Rapid Access Addiction Medicine Clinic (Schedule 9) 195,087 162,773
Problem Gambling (Schedule 9) 101,610 111,632
Crisis Response (Schedule 10) 69,528 69,540
Supportive Housing (Schedule 11) 519,787 526,474
ALC Back to Home (Schedule 12) 288,467 281,817
Patient Navigator (Schedule 13) 86,322 132,529
Municipal tax 14,400 14,400
Rainycrest - Home for the Aged (Schedule 14) 17,993,286 17,705,864
Community Support Services (Schedule 15) 2,014,376 1,665,469
Community Paramedicine (Schedule 16) 380,900 380,892
Assisted Living (Schedule 17) 896,312 499,574

23,626,003 22,645,308

Expenses
Mental Health - Case Management (Schedule 6) 90,898 90,904
Mental Health - Counselling (Schedule 7) 762,860 793,167
Addictions (Schedule 8) 212,170 212,368
Rapid Access Addiction Medicine Clinic (Schedule 9) 195,087 163,204
Problem Gambling (Schedule 9) 101,610 111,632
Crisis Response (Schedule 10) 69,528 69,540
Supportive Housing (Schedule 11) 524,589 584,568
ALC Back to Home (Schedule 12) 290,755 293,688
Patient Navigator (Schedule 13) 86,322 132,987
Municipal tax 16,642 13,350
Rainycrest - Home for the Aged (Schedule 14) 19,295,844 20,442,641
Community Support Services (Schedule 15) 2,018,530 1,664,010
Community Paramedicine (Schedule 16) 380,900 380,892
Assisted Living (Schedule 17) 896,312 499,574

24,942,047 25,452,525

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year $ (1,316,044) $ (2,807,217)

25
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 36 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 2 - Summary of Fund Type III's - Other Funding Sources

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
Family Violence Counselling Program (Schedule 3) $ 200,137 $ 193,154
Riverside Community Family 

Violence Service - PARR (Schedule 4) - -
Non-Profit Supportive Housing (Schedule 5) 618,837 519,812

818,974 712,966

Expenses
Family Violence Counselling Program (Schedule 3) 200,127 196,231
Riverside Community Family

 Violence Service - PARR (Schedule 4) - (144)
Non-Profit Supportive Housing (Schedule 5) 431,415 546,122

631,542 742,209

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ 187,432 $ (29,243)

26
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 37 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 3 - Family Violence Counselling Program

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
Ministry of Community and Social Services (Note 15) $ 168,826 $ 161,839
Other 31,311 31,315

200,137 193,154

Expenses
Salaries MOS 23,550 4,792
Salaries UPP 95,440 101,749
Benefits MOS -
Benefits UPP 21,920 21,257
Staff travel 649 392
Staff training 858 140
Other services 1,866 1,650
Supplies and equipment 3 1,258
Advertising 707 -
Rent 12,732 12,360
Insurance 1,116 1,080
Memberships - -
Capacity building 9,955 12,763
Rural resource 31,300 38,790
Meetings 31 -

200,127 196,231

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ 10 $ (3,077)

27
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 38 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 4 - Riverside Community Family Violence Service - PARR

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue $ - $ -

Expenses
Salaries UPP - 9,850
Benefits UPP - (10,073)
Supplies and sundry - 79

(144)

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ 144

28
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 39 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 5 - Non-Profit Suportive Housing

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (Note 15) $ 408,583 $ 331,325
Rental 147,214 127,456
Investment income 63,040 61,031

618,837 519,812

Expenses
Adminstration overhead 28,913 23,930
Amortization of capital costs 43,663 178,063
Capital reserve 10,968 18,802
Insurance 18,477 14,196
Interst on long-term debt 16,450 24,172
Management fees 7,000 12,000
Materials and services 96,966 65,307
Municipal taxes 41,855 41,387
Salaries, wages and benefits 87,865 87,725
Utilities 79,258 80,540

431,415 546,122

Fund balance, end of year $ 187,422 $ (26,310)

29
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 40 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 6 - Mental Health (Case Management)

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 90,898 $ 90,904

Expenses
Salaries UPP 70,689 47,402
Benefits UPP 20,209 43,502

90,898 90,904

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ -

30
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 41 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 7 - Mental Health (Counselling)

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 518,653 $ 518,653
Sessional fees 22,696 26,200
One-time funding - 24,204
Recoveries (3,700) 3,459
Other revenue - Thunder Bay Regional Health Sciences Centre 225,211 218,467

762,860 790,983

Expenses
Salaries MOS 123,501 117,482
Salaries UPP 258,632 268,360
Benefits MOS 30,839 40,600
Benefits UPP 51,993 63,360
Supplies and sundry 44,204 52,896
Equipment 1,233 1,340
Future benefits 4,550 4,462
Sessional fees 22,696 26,200
Thunder Bay Regional Health Sciences Centre 225,212 218,467

762,860 793,167

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ (2,184)

31
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 42 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 8 - Addictions

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 210,818 $ 210,812
Recoveries 1,352 1,645

212,170 212,457

Expenses
Salaries MOS 17 28,209
Salaries UPP 137,223 112,090
Benefits MOS - 4,445
Benefits UPP 32,546 23,080
Supplies and sundry 40,109 42,264
Equipment 61
Future benefits 2,275 2,219

212,170 212,368

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ 89

32
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 43 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 9 - Rapid Access Addiction Medicine (RAAM) Clinic

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 129,787 $ 162,773
Ontario Health Team 65,300 -

195,087 162,773

Expenses
Salaries UPP 131,336 119,457
Benefits UPP 28,011 31,649
Supplies and equipment 35,740 12,098

195,087 163,204

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ (431)

33
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 44 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 10 - Problem Gambling

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 101,610 $ 111,632

Expenses
Salaries UPP 80,385 88,525
Benefits UPP 19,522 23,015
Supplies and sundry 1,703 92

101,610 111,632

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ -

34
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 45 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 11 - Crisis Response

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 69,528 $ 69,540

Expenses
Salaries MOS - 2,024
Salaries UPP 55,808 56,717
Benefits MOS - -
Benefits UPP 13,191 10,137
Staff travel 28 -
Supplies and sundry 2 32
Equipment 499 630

69,528 69,540

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ -

35
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 46 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 12 - Supportive Housing

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 500,818 $ 500,822
One-time funding - 24,204
Recoveries 18,969 1,448

519,787 526,474

Expenses
Salaries MOS (6,063) 78,578
Salaries UPP 387,326 344,095
Benefits MOS 8,216 22,777
Benefits UPP 91,126 100,308
Supplies and sundry 29,347 29,612
Equipment 9,035 6,979
Future benefits 2,275 2,219
Buildings and grounds 3,327 -

524,589 584,568

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ (4,802) $ (58,094)

36
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 47 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 13 - ALC Back to Home

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 13)

- Operating $ 257,673 $ 257,678
- Rent geared to income 2,939 3,277

Recoveries and miscellaneous revenue 27,855 20,862

288,467 281,817

Expenses
Salaries and wages - MOS - (13,655)
Salaries and wages - UPP 228,570 234,117
Benefit contributions - UPP 50,703 49,873
Equipment 10,892 23,031
Building and grounds expense 590 322

290,755 293,688

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year $ (2,288) $ (11,871)

37
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 48 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 14 - Patient Navigator

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN (Note 15) $ 86,322 $ 108,339
One-time funding - 24,190

86,322 132,529

Expenses
Salaries UPP 69,010 108,841
Benefits UPP 16,192 22,862
Supplies and sundry 1,120 1,284

86,322 132,987

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ (458)

38
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 49 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 15 - Rainycrest - Home for the Aged

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
Ministry of Health/LHIN - General subsidy $ 11,043,411 $ 9,363,725

- One-time subsidies 3,058,212 4,650,526
- Doctor on-call funding 16,288 16,014
- High intensity needs and lab funding 89,302 196,290

14,207,213 14,226,555

Resident fees 3,270,181 3,183,923
Falls Prevention 10,176 13,570
Other 505,716 281,816

Total revenue 17,993,286 17,705,864

Expenses
Operations

Nursing and personal care
Nursing administration 309,543 274,886
Nursing personal care 11,410,999 12,988,223
Doctor on-call expenditures 18,088 15,840
Medical director fees 32,470 30,012
RAI coordinator 69,479 57,047
Nurse practitioner - 7,299

Total nursing and personal care 11,840,579 13,373,307

Other operations
Program and support services 864,185 899,978
Raw food 680,506 623,201

Accommodation
Housekeeping services 728,228 682,404
Building and property 682,133 711,579
Dietary services 1,037,480 862,792
Laundry and linen services 364,912 464,154
General and administrative 2,276,684 2,111,250
Facility costs 410,791 315,006
Falls prevention - 13,570
Medications management 5,401 49,032
High intensity needs and lab costs 444,659 402,068

Bad debts 31,786 -

Total expenses before amortization and
  post-retirement benefits and compensated absences 19,367,344 20,508,341

Fund balance before amortization and 
  post-retirement benefits and compensated absences (1,374,058) (2,802,477)

Post-retirement benefits and compensated absences (71,500) (65,700)

(71,500) (65,700)

Total expenses 19,295,844 20,442,641

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year $ (1,302,558) $ (2,736,777)

39
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 50 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 16 - Community Support Services

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN - General subsidy $ 854,502 $ 644,343

- One-time funding - 62,699
Recoveries and miscellaneous revenue 1,030,266 808,498
Handi-van 129,608 149,929

2,014,376 1,665,469

Expenses
Salaries and wages - MOS 228,518 169,432
Salaries and wages - UPP 1,017,136 831,312
Benefit contributions - MOS 29,249 49,148
Benefit contributions - UPP 254,491 235,404
Supplies and sundry expenses 324,795 187,447
Equipment 21,826 25,333
Building and grounds expense 12,907 10,707
Handi-van 129,608 155,227

2,018,530 1,664,010

Deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year $ (4,154) $ 1,459

40
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 51 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 17 - Community Paramedicine

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN - General subsidy $ 380,900 $ 146,892

- One-time funding - 234,000

380,900 380,892

Expenses
Contracted out services 380,900 380,892

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ -

41
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 52 of 53



DRAFT

Riverside Health Care Facilities, Inc.
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Schedule 18 - Assisted Living

For the year ended
 
March 31 2025 2024

Revenue
LHIN - General subsidy $ 579,096 $ 196,769

- Expansion funding 263,563 267,704
Recoveries and miscellaneous revenue 53,653 35,101

896,312 499,574

Expenses
Salaries and wages - MOS 14,609 45,500
Salaries and wages - UPP 527,051 245,121
Benefit contributions - UPP 121,070 66,169
Supplies and sundry expenses 91,804 33,939
Equipment 138,167 105,184
Building and grounds expense 3,611 3,661

896,312 499,574

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year $ - $ -

42
Board of Directors - Open Session June 17, 2025 53 of 53




